
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC MEETING #172 

 
December 9, 2015 

10:30 a.m. 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission 

101 Federal Street, 12th Floor  
Boston, MA 

 





 

Meeting Minutes 

  

 

Date/Time: November 19, 2015 - 10:30 a.m. 

Place:  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  
 101 Federal Street, 12th Floor  
 Boston, Massachusetts 
  
Present:  Chairman Stephen P. Crosby  
 Commissioner Gayle Cameron  

Commissioner Lloyd Macdonald  
Commissioner Bruce Stebbins 
Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Call to Order  
See transcript page 2 
  
10:33 a.m.     Chairman Crosby called to order the 170th Commission Meeting.                          
   
Administration  
See transcript pages 2-4 
 
10:33 a.m.  Commissioner Stebbins provided an update on the executive director search which 

included the following:  the Commission has received over 70 resumes to date, 
interviews of candidates are ongoing, and they anticipate final interviews in 
December and an executive director in place after the first of the year.   

 
Ombudsman 
See transcript pages 4-45 
 
10:36 a.m. General Manager Lance George provided an overview of the Plainridge Park 

Casino Quarterly Report which included the following highlights:  staffing  
demographics, diversity goals, vendor diversity spend, local spend, diversity spend 
action plan, revenue and taxes, compliance with regulations, compliance with 
community agreements, company overview, events, and promotions.  General 
Manager George also reported on current projects which included the Central 
Monitoring System, the Intercept Detection System, and Play Management.    

 

Time entries are linked to 
corresponding section in                  

Commission meeting video 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=0
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=35
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=222


 
11:10 a.m. Ombudsman John Ziemba reported on MGM’s public presentation in Springfield 

and noted the following highlights:  the meeting was hosted by the City of 
Springfield and attended by approximately 300 people, MGM announced that they 
will increase project budget to $950 million, MGM expressed continued 
commitment to the project, MGM discussed square footage reductions, and MGM 
promised a renewed focus on transparency and communications.   

 
11:15 a.m. Chairman Crosby noted that the Commission will have a public meeting and public 

hearing on December 3rd in Springfield.  MGM will present on their proposed 
design changes at the public meeting and the public is invited to the public hearing 
in the afternoon to offer comments on the design changes.   

 
Legal Division 
See transcript pages 46-80 
 
11:20 a.m. Deputy General Counsel Todd Grossman presented on a licensee’s request for a 

non-disclosure agreement and provided an overview of the public records law.  He 
also provided options for the Commission’s consideration on the review and 
approval process.  The Commissioners discussed process options.   

 
11:33 a.m. General Counsel Catherine Blue summarized that the Legal Division will review 

requests for non-disclosure agreements, prepare a memo, and brief individual 
Commissioners before a vote at a Commission meeting.     

 
11:37 a.m. Deputy General Counsel Grossman presented on draft regulation 205 CMR 129:  

Transfer of Interests and proposed commencement of a new promulgation process.    
 
11:51 a.m. Commissioner Zuniga moved that the Commission approve the draft regulations 

205 CMR 116, 205 CMR 102.02, and 205CMR 129 as presented in the packet and 
start the formal promulgation process.  Motion seconded by Commissioner 
Macdonald.  Motion passed unanimously.   

 
11:52 a.m. The Commission took a short recess.   
12:00 p.m. The meeting resumed.   
 
12:00 p.m. General Counsel Blue noted the annual election of the Gaming Commission 

Secretary and Treasurer.   
 
12:01 p.m. Commissioner Zuniga nominated Commissioner Macdonald as Secretary.  

Commissioner Stebbins seconded the nomination.  Nomination passed unanimously.   
 
12:03 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins nominated Commissioner Zuniga as Treasurer.  

Commissioner Cameron seconded the nomination.  Nomination passed 
unanimously.   

 
Workforce, Supplier and Diversity Development 
See transcript pages 81-89 
 
12:04 p.m. Director Jill Griffin noted that a priority of the gaming law is to include Veterans in 

the building and operation of casinos.  She reported on the expanded definition of 
Veterans which includes members of the National Guard.       

https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=2264
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=2555
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=2819
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=3597
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=3864
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=4707
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=4773
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=4786
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=4806
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=4846
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=4934
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=5015


 
12:05 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins provided a background on the expanded definition of 

Veterans.  Commissioner Stebbins reported that the expanded definition was put out 
for public comment and due to some concerns received; he suggested withdrawing 
the proposed definition change at this time to gather additional feedback and 
conduct more outreach.  He also stated that he will ask the licensees to track 
information on employees and their National Guard service.    

 
Fantasy Sports Update 
See transcript page 89-91 
 
12:13 p.m. Chairman Crosby noted that the Commission will host a public education forum on 

December 10th to discuss fantasy sports and online gaming.  He also noted that 
forum speakers will include experts in the industry, representatives from daily 
fantasy sports and the casino industry, licensees, and others to help the Commission 
make recommendations to the Legislature.     

 
Research and Responsible Gaming 
See transcript page 91 
 
12:15 p.m. Interim Director Karen Wells reported that the Research and Responsible Gaming 

agenda item will not go forward as Director Vander Linden is out sick.   
 
Investigations and Enforcement Bureau 
See transcript pages 91-107 
 
12:17 p.m. Chief Enforcement Counsel and Deputy Director Loretta Lillios presented on slot 

machine leasing which included revenue share arrangements and a jurisdictional 
survey of participation agreements.  She also reported that staff will conduct 
additional research and provide a detailed report to the Commission.   

 
Other Business Not Reasonably Anticipated 
See transcript pages 107-108 
 
12:35 p.m. Having no further business, a motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner 

Cameron.  Motion seconded by Commissioner Macdonald.   Motion passed 
unanimously.   

  
List of Documents and Other Items Used 

 
1.  Massachusetts Gaming Commission, Notice of Meeting and Agenda dated November 19, 2015 
2.  Plainridge Park Casino Report to the Massachusetts Gaming Commission – Q3 2015 
3.  Massachusetts Gaming Commission, Memorandum dated November 19, 2015 regarding Non- 
       Disclosure Agreements with Gaming Licensees, with attachment 
4.  Draft Regulation 205 CMR 102.02: Construction and Application  
5.  Draft Regulation 205 CMR 116.00: Persons Required to be Licensed or Qualified 
6.  Draft Regulation 205 CMR 129.00: Review of a Proposed Transfer of Interests 
7.  Massachusetts Gaming Commission, Memorandum dated November 19, 2015 regarding 
       Recommendations for the Annual Gaming Research Agenda 

        
      /s/ Catherine Blue  
      Catherine Blue, Assistant Secretary 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=5091
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=5563
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=5740
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=5801
https://www.youtube.com/watch?feature=player_embedded&v=3ucJSSEbVXg#t=6896


 

 

 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 

ILEV PETITION ANALYSIS 

 
 

PETITIONER:  MASSACHUSETTS PERFORMING ARTS COALITION  

APPLICANT:  MASS GAMING AND ENTERTAINMENT, LLC 
 

 

December 9, 2015 

  



Introduction   Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 2 

 

INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW 
 

The Live Entertainment Venue has submitted to the Commission a petition to be designated as a 

Impacted Live Entertainment Venue to the Applicant’s proposed gaming establishment in 

accordance with G.L. c. 23K, §§ 4(33) and 17(a) and 205 CMR 126.01(2). The Applicant has 

submitted a response to the petition.  

 

In making its determination, the Commission must consider the definition of impacted live 

entertainment venue as set forth in MGL C 23k, §2 (“a not-for-profit or municipally-owned 

performance venue designed in whole or in part for the presentation of live concerts, comedy or 

theatrical performances, which the commission determines experiences, or is likely to 

experience, a negative impact from the development or operation of a gaming 

establishment.”)  and factors in G.L. c. 23K, §§ 4(39) including distance from the gaming 

establishment, venue capacity, and the type of performance offered by that venue. 

 

In accordance with 205 CMR 126.01(2):  “the commission will consider whether the applicant 

intends to include a geographic exclusivity clause in the contracts of entertainers at the proposed 

gaming establishment, or in some other way intends to limit the performance of entertainers 

within Massachusetts.” 

 
The Commission must review, in accordance with G.L. c. 23K, §§ 4(33) and 17(a) and 205 CMR 

125.01(2)(b), the Applicant’s entire application; the Applicant’s RFA-2 detailed plan of 

construction; any independent evaluations; any pertinent information received from the 

entertainment venue, the Applicant, the Applicant’s host community, and the public; and any 

additional information that the Commission determined to be beneficial in making its 

determination.  The Commission’s regulations lay out the criteria that the Commission should 

consider in making its determination: 

1. Not for profit/municipally owned venue  

2. Type of performance 

3. Proximity 

4. Venue Capacity 

5. Potential Negative Impacts 

a. Applicant geographic exclusivity clause 

 

This document lays out the criteria and provides the legal framework that the Commission must 

consider, an executive summary of the issues, and pertinent information from the entertainment 

venue’s petition, the Applicant’s response, consultant analysis, relevant RFA-2 application 

question responses, and other relevant materials. Please see accompanying documents for full 

entertainment venue petition, applicant response, and consultant analysis. 

 



Proximity  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 3 

 

 

1. VENUE OWNERSHIP /TYPE OF PERFORMANCES 
 

Legal Framework 

 

In determining whether a venue is an impacted live entertainment venue, the commission will 

evaluate whether...the venue meets the definition of ‘impacted live entertainment venue’ (“a 

not-for-profit or municipally-owned performance venue designed in whole or in part for the 

presentation of live concerts, comedy or theatrical performances, which the commission 

determines experiences, or is likely to experience, a negative impact from the development or 

operation of a gaming establishment.”)  as set forth in G.L. c.23K, §2 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 

By agreement of all parties, The MA Performing Arts Coalition (MPAC) members listed below 

are non-profit 501(c) (3) Massachusetts corporations or municipally owned entities. 

 South Shore Music Circus / Cape Cod Melody Tent:  sister venues, owned and operated by 

South Shore Playhouse Associates, a non-profit and MPAC member. The venues typically offer 

live concerts, children’s shows, and comedy performances.  

Lynn Auditorium: located in Lynn, MA, this venue is municipally owned and located in Lynn 

City Hall. The auditorium typically features performances in the musical, dance, and theatre 

genres.  

Zeiterion Theatre: The theatre, located in New Bedford, MA, operates as a non-profit 

organization and typically features performances in the musical, comedy and child-friendly 

genres. 

MA Gaming and Entertainment (MGE OR MG&E)’s proposed gaming establishment features an 

in-house, multi-purpose area which could be used for hosting live entertainment. The largest 

room/banquet area is to be 12,000 square feet, constructed in a rectangular, non-elevated manner 

with a stage at the far end of the space. With seating space for up to 1,000 people is to have 

multiple functions spanning from meetings, conventions, weddings, and seminars to live 

entertainment  

 

A. ENTERTAINMENT VENUE PETITION 
 

South Shore Music Circus and Cape Cod Melody Tent presented over 160 major concert events 

during the past two seasons, including such artists as Frankie Valli, Lynyrd Skynyrd, Steve 

Miller Band Little Big Town, Lee Brice, Beach Boys, Doobie Brothers, Chris Botti and Jeff 

Foxworthy. 

 



Proximity  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 4 

 

 

The Lynn Auditorium is likely to experience a severe negative impact from the diversion of 

potential customers to this new venue, as it is likely that the types of entertainers booked to 

appear at MG&E’s location will be similar to entertainers that otherwise would appear at the 

Lynn Auditorium, such as Kenny Rogers, Alice Cooper, The Celtic Woman and Prince Royce, 

all of whom have played both the Lynn Auditorium and Mohegan Sun.  

 

The Zeiterion Theatre’s typical roster of more than sixty entertainers and performances is similar 

to those likely to be booked by MG&E at its gaming establishment, and as is the case for the 

theatres in Lynn and Cohasset, without an enforceable contractual commitment from MG&E that 

no exclusivity clauses will be incorporated into agreements with entertainers performing at 

MG&E’s gaming establishment … the Zeiterion Theatre will be vulnerable to diversion of those 

performances to MG&E’s establishment. 
 

B. APPLICANT RESPONSE 
 

MGE has already indicated to MPAC that MGE does not intend to require geographic 

exclusivity with respect to the MPAC venues in the contracts of  entertainers at the proposed 

gaming establishment.  

 

C. CONSULTANT ANALYSIS 
 

While MGE is not directly establishing an in-house venue solely for live entertainment, its 

proposed gaming establishment will feature multi-purpose space, which can be utilized to host 

live entertainment for up to 1,000 people.   

 

MPAC member venues offer a range of drama, comedy, musical and children’s performances, 

which present the potential for performance genre overlap with the MG&E facility 

 

D. APPLICATION 
 

4-2 Relationship with Surroundings  

MG&E Casino Resort will become a regional destination offering first class gaming, 

entertainment, accommodations and dining options for southeastern Massachusetts, Rhode Island 

and Connecticut. MG&E Casino Resort will feature state-of-the-art gaming and entertainment 

facilities and attract patrons with a range of cuisine options. Conference and event space will 

welcome local organizations and special events to the complex as well. MG&E Casino Resort 

will blend an integrated hotel and casino resort project within the community. From a planning 

perspective, the best approaches for traffic and safety practices to direct patrons on and off the 

developed site will be employed. The architecture will be mindful of the strength of New 



Proximity  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 5 

 

 

England design that will capture the spirit with fine detailing that also reflects modern, forward 

thinking design. The landscape design will create a sense of arrival and destination for the 

MG&E Casino Resort, while providing enhanced sustainability measures and appropriate visual 

buffering and open space for the surrounding community.  

 

4-11 Non-Gaming Amenities  

 MG&E believes the MG&E Casino Resort in Brockton will be an anchor for the community, 

providing a fresh addition to Brockton’s rich cultural history.  MG&E Casino Resort will feature 

world-class non-gaming amenities that will provide a world-class entertainment experience for 

all visitors. To support the gaming options, MG&E Casino Resort will feature multiple 

amenities, including a hotel, spa and fitness center, restaurants, bars and lounges, and an event 

center. 

 

4-12 Exhibition Spaces  

MG&E Casino Resort will include a 25,000 square-foot multi-functional area that can be 

parceled to hold exhibitions such as sports card shows, fashion shows, jewelry shows and other 

trade shows. In addition to the multi-functional area, there will be ample, separate, meeting 

rooms. MG&E Casino Resort will also be able to accommodate smaller exhibitions in the 

meeting rooms. 

 

4-13 Conference Space 

MG&E Casino Resort will promote travel and tourism by attracting groups of all sizes. MG&E 

Casino Resort will feature a 25,000-square-foot multi-purpose space that can be parceled to hold 

large trade shows as well as small convention groups. In addition to the multi-functional area, 

there will be ample, separate, meeting rooms. MG&E Casino Resort will be able to 

accommodate smaller conferences and break-out groups in the meeting space.  

 

4-15 Entertainment Venues  

MG&E Casino Resort will not feature a dedicated entertainment venue. Instead, MG&E Casino 

Resort will feature approximately 25,000 square feet of multifunction event and entertainment 

space. This space, during certain programming, can be converted into a 1,000-person live-

entertainment space. For events attracting over 1,000 persons, MG&E Casino Resort will utilize 

venues such as Campanelli Stadium.   



Proximity  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 6 

 

 

2.PROXIMITY 
 

Legal Framework 

 

In determining whether a venue is a impacted live entertainment venue, the commission shall 

consider….factors including, but not limited to, the venue's distance from the gaming 

establishment, venue capacity and the type of performances offered by that venue”) 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 

Proximity—respective MPAC member venues and the proposed MG&E site are separated by a 

range spanning 21 to 56 miles by road.  Petitioners present actual distance between the proposed 

establishment while the approximate distance by road is raised by the applicant and verified by 

the consultants.  

 

A. ENTERTAINMENT VENUE PETITION 
 

The proposed establishment would be located approximately 19 miles from South Shore Music 

Circus and 47 miles from Cape Cod Melody Tent, both within the 50-mile radius many live 

entertainment presenters use to guarantee exclusivity from performers and much less than the 

100-mile radius more common among casino presenters. 

 

The proposed establishment would be located approximately 26 miles from the Lynn 

Auditorium, well within the 50-mile radius many live entertainment presenters use to guarantee 

exclusivity from performers and much less than the 100-mile radius more common among casino 

presenters. 

 

The proposed gaming establishment would be located approximately 31 miles from the Zeiterion 

Theatre, well within the 50-mile radius many live entertainment presenters use to guarantee 

exclusivity from performers and much less than the 100-mile radius more common among casino 

presenters. 

 

B. APPLICANT RESPONSE 
 

 

Cape Cod Melody Tent: Described in MPAC’s letter as approximately 47 miles from MGE’s 

proposed gaming establishment, this venue is approximately 61 miles away by road, a distance 

that would take over an hour to drive in moderate traffic.  

 



Proximity  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 7 

 

 

Lynn Auditorium: this venue is northeast of Boston and over 35 miles away by road, a distance 

that would typically take over an hour to drive via the “direct” route through Boston. 

 

Zeiterion Theatre: this venue is over 37 miles away by road, a distance that would typically take 

at least forty minutes to drive.  

 

C. CONSULTANT ANALYSIS 
 

The South Shore Music Circus is located 21 miles by road in Cohasset, MA, while the Cape Cod 

Melody Tent is located 56 miles by road in Hyannis, MA. 

 

The Lynn Auditorium is located in Lynn, MA, approximately 35 miles by road from the site of 

the proposed MG&E gaming establishment. 

 

Zeiterion Theatre is located in New Bedford, MA, approximately 37 miles by road from 

MG&E`s proposed site. 

 

Proximity—respective MPAC member venues and the proposed MG&E site are separated by a 

range spanning 21 to 56 miles by road. 

. 

 

 



Venue Capacity  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 8 

 

 

3. VENUE CAPACITY 
 

Legal Framework 

 

“In determining whether the venue is an ILEV the commission shall consider factors including, 

but not limited to, venue capacity and the type of performances offered by that venue” a G.L. 

c.23K, §4(39):   

 

Executive Summary 

By agreement of all parties seating capacities are a maximum of 1,000 seats at MG&E’s 

proposed site versus a range of 2,000 – 2,300 seats at the respective MPAC member venues. 

 

A. ILEV PETITION 
 

No reference to seating capacity in the petition but websites and information provided to the 

consultants verify the seating capacity of each venue. 

 

B. APPLICANT RESPONSE 
 

According to South Shore Playhouse Associates website, South Shore Music Circus in Cohasset 

has approximately 2,300 seats and the Cape Cod Melody Tent in Hyannis is about the same size 

having approximately 2,300 seats.  Lynn Auditorium according to the operator’s website has 

approximately 2,100 seats. 

 

C. CONSULTANT ANALYSIS 

 

Seating capacities are a maximum of 1,000 seats at MG&E’s proposed site versus a range of 

2,000 – 2,300 seats at the respective MPAC member venues. 

 

D. APPLICATION 

 

MG&E’s proposed gaming establishment features an in-house, multi-purpose area which 

could be used for hosting live entertainment. MG&E’s Category 1 Casino Application 

outlines the following: 

 Plans for a total of 25,000 square feet of available multi-purpose space 



Venue Capacity  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 9 

 

 

 The largest room/banquet area is to be 12,000 square feet, constructed in a rectangular, 

non-elevated manner with a stage at the far end of the space 

 Seating space for up to 1,000 people 

 The space is to have multiple functions spanning from meetings, conventions, weddings, 

and seminars to live entertainment  

 

 

 

 



Potential Negative Impact  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 10 

 

 

4. POTENTIAL NEGATIVE IMPACT/ ENTERTAINER 

EXCLUSIVITY CLAUSE 
 

Legal Framework 

 

In making its determination, the Commission must consider the definition of impacted live 

entertainment venue as set forth in MGL C 23k, §2 (“a not-for-profit or municipally-owned 

performance venue designed in whole or in part for the presentation of live concerts, comedy or 

theatrical performances, which the commission determines experiences, or is likely to 

experience, a negative impact from the development or operation of a gaming establishment.”)  

 

Executive Summary 

 

MGE has indicated in their application and in the applicant response that they will not impose an 

entertainer exclusivity clause on their performers relative to non-casino venues.  ILEV 

Petitioners indicate that without an enforceable contractual commitment, MGE could program its 

venues with touring entertainers in direct competition with those presented their venues resulting 

in devastating impact.  Consultant analysis indicates the potential for performance genre overlap 

with the MGE facility with music and comedy show entertainers as the genres most likely to 

overlap. Consultants believe the impacts to petitioning MPAC member venues caused by MGE 

operation are likely to be minimal.   

 

A. ILEV PETITION 
 

Please note that the draft ILEV agreement being negotiated between the Coalition and MG&E 

includes a commitment from the applicant that no exclusivity clauses will be incorporated into 

agreements with entertainers performing at MG&E’s gaming establishment. MG&E has stated 

that its intention is not to incorporate a geographic exclusivity clause into entertainer agreements 

that would impact Coalition members…. However, without an enforceable contractual 

commitment, MG&E could program its venues with touring entertainers in direct competition 

with those presented at South Shore Music Circus and Cape Cod Melody Tent and, using its 

disproportionate buying power (many time overpaying for the same acts, because it is not the 

gaming establishment’s core business), divert many of those acts to MG&E’s gaming 

establishment, which was not the intent of the 2011 Gaming Act.  

 

This would have a devastating impact on both South Shore Music Circus and Cape Cod Melody 

Tent, which presented over 160 major concert events during the past two seasons, including such 

artists as Frankie Valli, Lynyrd Skynyrd, Steve Miller Band, Little Big Town, Lee Brice, Beach 

Boys, Doobie Brothers, Chris Botti and Jeff Foxworthy. It also seriously jeopardizes South Shore 



Potential Negative Impact  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 11 

 

 

Playhouse Associates’ main operating objective, which is to put millions of dollars into arts 

education in our communities – as we have been doing for over 64 years.  

 

B. APPLICANT RESPONSE 
 

Given the distances involved, capacities of the MPAC venues, and MGE’s intention to not 

require geographic exclusivity with respect to the MPAC venues, we dispute the eligibility of the 

venues in question for ILEV status under Chapter 23K and the applicable regulations. 

 

C. CONSULTANT ANALYSIS 
 

Similarity of performances—MPAC member venues offer a range of drama, comedy, musical 

and children’s performances, which present the potential for performance genre overlap with the 

MG&E facility.  Music and comedy shows entertainers are the genres most likely to overlap. 

Operating Restrictions–MG&E states in their Application that no geographic exclusivity clauses, 

with respect to MPAC venues, will be required for hired entertainers. 

 

In our view, the impacts to petitioning MPAC member venues caused by MG&E operation are 

likely to be minimal.  However, we acknowledge that, if realized, any negative impacts to these 

not-for-profit entities could be consequential. 

 

D. APPLICATION  
 

3-24 Local Agreements 

MG&E intends to partner with attractions and businesses in Brockton and the regional area 

including to expand the gaming establishment’s draw. Additionally, MG&E intends to 

coordinate and work with the City of Brockton in creating an entertainment district. Moreover, 

MG&E will look to partner with local festivals, wineries, theatres, and tourist destinations, as 

well as leveraging Rush Rewards to incorporate local dining, attractions, and businesses. 

 

3-25 Crossmarketing 

The MG&E Casino Resort will benefit from the rich diversity of attractions in 

Brockton/Plymouth County. MG&E intends to work in cohesion with the Metro South Chamber 

of Commerce and historical and cultural attractions, as well as to participate appropriately in 

local events to further tourism and tourism spend within the county. 

 



Potential Negative Impact  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 12 

 

 

3-26 Collaboration with Tourism and Other Industries 

MG&E-affiliated properties understand the importance of working cooperatively to further 

regional tourism. Each of the affiliates has a record of success in working collaboratively with 

local businesses as well as tourism and sales organizations in each of the markets it operates. 

MG&E will seek potential partnerships with local and regional tourism groups including the 

Massachusetts Office of Travel and Tourism, Massachusetts Port Authority, Greater Boston 

Visitors and Convention Bureau, and the Metro South Chamber of Commerce. These 

partnerships will help bring tourism to the City of Brockton by offering numerous activities and 

making the destination easily accessible. Additionally, MG&E is working in collaboration with 

the City of Brockton to research and develop plans for an entertainment district adjacent to the 

property.  

 

3-28 Other Amenities 

 MG&E will leverage high quality, unique dining, hotel, and spa to create a fantastic quality 

getaway for both regional residents and visitors alike. MG&E will provide spa, fitness and pool 

areas for hotel guests. The Applicant will also focus on attracting tour and travel, sales, and event 

visitors through their banquet facility and the partnership with Campanelli Stadium. 

Additionally, working cooperatively with the City of Brockton, the casino would enjoy a 

location adjacent to an entertainment district to be developed as a unique destination in 

Brockton. All amenities beyond the hotel and the gaming floor will be a great complement to the 

City of Brockton while making the desired destination.  

 

3-31 Record of Success 

The Applicant understands the importance of the tourism industry to the regional economy and 

strives to partner with local entities to drive growth in the local economy. With our track record 

in Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, and Des Plaines, we are confident we can establish tremendous 

relationships with partners in Brockton and the regional area to drive tourism and revenue into 

the area. 

 

3-32 Entertainment and Athletic Events  

MG&E plans to offer an assorted range of non-gaming entertainment for guests of the resort. 

Examples include local acts in the lounge, boxing matches in the multi-event space and 

selectively purchased tickets or suites to a variety of professional sports and entertainment 

offerings. MG&E intends to work in concert with the nearby Campanelli Stadium and The 

Shaw’s Center to support diverse offerings such as seasonal festivals, trade and special interest 

shows, and larger outdoor concerts.  

 

4-1 Overall Theme  

Also, MG&E intends to purchase tickets for invited consumers to enjoy the many offerings in the 

area. Examples of events could range from the great Boston sports teams to concerts and shows 

at the Boston Opera House and Emerson Colonial Theatre. The Applicant’s history of respecting 



Potential Negative Impact  Massachusetts Gaming Commission  Page 13 

 

 

a community’s heritage is evident in the design and development of MG&E Casino Resort. The 

project’s design has been well-received by the City of Brockton as it reflects conservative New 

England architecture, fitting comfortably within the context of the community. MG&E Casino 

Resort will complement existing entertainment complexes, such as The Shaw Center and 

Campanelli Stadium. The proximity of MG&E Casino Resort to these properties represents great 

components to develop an entertainment district for the City of Brockton. MG&E Casino Resort 

will become a regional destination offering first-class gaming, entertainment, accommodations, 

and dining options for southeastern Massachusetts, Rhode Island, and Connecticut. MG&E 

Casino Resort will feature state-of-the-art gaming and entertainment facilities, and attract patrons 

with a range of cuisine options. Conference and event space will welcome local organizations 

and special events to the complex as well.  

 

4-21 Tourism Diversity  

MG&E will build a high-quality casino resort with a variety of quality amenities included as part 

of the gaming establishment. MG&E anticipates entering into numerous local partnerships that 

will ensure patrons a diversified regional tourism experience. The Rush Rewards Plus Program, 

partnerships with local hotels, and sponsored events and festivals at the Campanelli Stadium, 

along with a potential entertainment district within the City of Brockton, will ensure a wide 

variety of high-quality amenities offered to both out-of-state and in-state visitors. Charter buses 

may also be offered in order to make the property more easily accessible to nonlocal visitors. 

 

4-22 Diversified Regional Tourism  

The Applicant will introduce highly diverse nongaming amenities to accommodate all visitors. 

Offering a luxurious spa, pool and fitness area for all guests staying at our hotel will improve 

tourism and complement additional features MG&E will provide. Partnerships with local and 

regional business are significant for both the city and the applicant; the Campanelli Stadium will 

be among those partnerships along with local hotels and annual events. Lastly, providing the 

Rush Rewards Plus Program will benefit both the visitors and the affiliated business. Working 

with Massachusettes Office of Travel and Tourism (MOTT) and Massachusetts Port Authority 

(Massport) will maximize our reach and greatly contribute to the remodeling of Brockton. 

 

5-21 Exclusivity with Entertainers  

Mass Gaming and Entertainment is in the process of finalizing with the Massachusetts 

Performing Arts Coalition an “Impacted Live Entertainment Venue” mitigation agreement. It is 

not our intention to incorporate a geographic exclusivity clause into MG&E agreements with 

entertainers that would impact the venues outlined in the Massachusetts Performing Arts 

Coalition. However, we may ask entertainers not to perform within a reasonable timeframe at 

other area casino resorts. 

 

.

 



















 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 





















 
 

 
 

 

Memorandum 
 
DATE:  December 7, 2015 
 
TO:  Chairman Crosby and Commissioners Cameron, Macdonald and Zuniga 
 
FROM:  Commissioner Stebbins 
 
Cc:  Chief of Staff Janice Reilly 
  Human Resources Manager Trupti Banda 
  Interim Executive Director Karen Wells 
 
SUBJECT: Screening for Executive Director / Interviews of Finalists 
 
In September 2015, the Commission charged me with serving as the Hiring Manager for the 
new Massachusetts Gaming Commission Executive Director.  This memo is to provide a 
background on our search, interview process for our two finalists and subsequent steps. 
 
Recruitment 
 
On September 15th, the Commission posted the notice for the Executive Director’s position.  I 
greatly appreciate the assistance of Chief of Staff Reilly, Human Resources Manager Banda, and 
our talented senior administration team who assisted with the review and analysis of the 
candidates. 
 
In our efforts to promote the position, the MGC took the following steps to reach the broadest 
group of candidates: 
 

• Promoted the job through the following career websites – CEO, MGC Website, Linked-
In, National Urban League (60 days), Minority Professional Network (30 days), 
Hispanic/Latino Professionals Association (National/30 day), Latino Professionals 
Network (Boston/30 days), Casino Careers (posted 9/25, 60 days), International Gaming 
Regulators Association, IAGR (posted on 9/25) and NAGRA (posted on 9/29 for 60 day) 

• Shared posting with leadership in other gaming jurisdictions including Indiana and 
Pennsylvania and invited them to share the posting with potential candidates. 

• Networked information on position with AGA and with the International Gaming 
Institute at UNLV. 

 



 
 

 
 

The Commission received over 75 resumes and cover letters.  The applicants selected for initial 
interviews included individuals with experience in senior level private sector management, 
working within the gaming industry, law enforcement, gaming regulation, horse racing 
regulation, working within the horse racing industry, and public policy. Approximately 20% of 
the candidates were interviewed in a first round.   
 
Additionally, senior staff and directors were able to interview candidates and discuss their 
responsibilities within the Commission.  Our gaming consultants from Michael & Carroll and 
former Commissioner McHugh also met with candidates to share additional insight on the 
Commission’s work and ask about the experience of each candidate.  Their feedback was also 
shared with me. 
 
Interviews with Finalists 
 
The following candidates have been selected for finalist interviews – Edward Bedrosian and 
Charles LaBoy.  Their professional resumes are included with this memorandum.  Both 
candidates met the criteria as requested in the posting and offer a unique set of skills and 
experience that will benefit the Commission and staff. 
 
The candidates will be interviewed in alphabetical order.  After the conclusion of both 
interviews, the five Commissioners shall discuss their interest for the priorities and 
responsibilities of the next Executive Director.  The Commissioners will discuss the answers as 
provided by each candidate and express their preference for a candidate.  Once one candidate 
has the preference of a majority of the Commissioners, the Chair will ask for the following 
motion: 
 
Motion 
 
“The Commission shall charge Commissioner Stebbins and staff to negotiate a compensation 
package within the range between $130K and 180K as specified in the posting for the 
preferred candidate and that the preferred candidate shall also submit to a required 
background check, drug screen, and review of references prior to employment by the 
Commission.” 
 
 
 










	0) Cover Page
	12-09-15 - Commission Meeting Agenda - FINAL
	2a) 2015.11.19 - Minutes - Draft
	Section 3 Insert
	3a1) MGE- MPAC ILEV ANALYSIS 12-9-15
	3a2) MGE ILEV Petition 11-9-15
	3a2.5) MPAC Letter to MGC 12-7-15
	3a3) 2015 10 23 MGE ltr to MGC contesting MPAC ILEV designation request
	Section 4 Insert
	4a) ED Finalists Memo
	ED Candidate resumes



